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VISION STATEMENT 

To be a dynamic, profitable and growth oriented Organization through dedication, integrity and professionalism. 

 

MISSION STATEMENT 

Our mission is to achieve higher level of sustainable growth and profitability by: 

 

a) Striving for excellence and sustaining position as a preferred supplier of yarn with a customers focused 

strategy. 

 

b)  Providing diversified and value added textile products. 

 

c) Building a long term relationship with our customers, suppliers and other stake holders. 

 

d) Enhancing the profitability by employing latest technologies for achieving higher levels of efficiency, 

quality and productivity. 

 

e) Continuously responding to the changing needs of all our customers. 

 

f) Nurturing a work culture that generates creativity, enthusiasm, participation and professionalism. 

 

g) Developing motivation and retaining people to achieve high team performance. 

 

h) Being a good corporate citizen by fulfilling our social responsibilities. 
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the Fortieth Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of SHADMAN COTTON 

MILLS LIMITED will be held at Company’s Registered Office, 2-E, Block-G, Mushtaq Ahmed Gurmani Road, 

Gulberg-II, Lahore on Monday, October 28, 2019 at 10.30 a.m. to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To confirm the minutes of Thirty Ninth Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company held on 

Tuesday, November 27, 2018. 

 

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 

30, 2019 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon. 

 

3. To appoint Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2020 and fix their remuneration. The present auditors 

M/s Mushtaq & Company, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible offered themselves for re-

appointment. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

4. To consider and if thought fit, approve the disposal of any assets of the company by passing the following 

resolutions as an ordinary resolution, with or without any modification, addition or deletion in terms of Section 

183(3) (a) of the Companies Act 2017: 

“RESOLVED, that approval and consent of the general meeting be and is hereby accorded in terms of Section 183(3) 

(a) of the Companies Act 2017 for the disposal of any assets of the company, if required, as contained in statement 

of material facts subject to issue of NOC from the concerned bank(s), where required, and that the Chief Executive 

of the Company be and is hereby authorized to dispose of any assets of the company in such manner, on such basis 

and on such terms and subject to such conditions and for such consideration as may be deemed in the best interest 

of the company.” 

“FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chief Executive or his nominee(s) / representative(s) be and is/are hereby authorized 

and empowered on behalf of the company to do so all acts, deeds and things and take all necessary steps including 

negotiations and signing of the documents, deeds and papers, agreements and all other documents as may be 

necessary in order to give effect to implement the resolution as aforesaid and all matters connected, necessary and 

identical thereto.”  

 

ANY OTHER BUSINESS: 

5. To consider any other business with the permission of the Chair. 

 

 

 By order of the Board 

Place:Lahore  (MUHAMMAD AKHTAR) 

  

Dated:October 03, 2019  Company Secretary 
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NOTES: 

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 21, 2019  

to October 28, 2019 both days inclusive. 

 

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint another member as a proxy 

to attend and vote on his/her behalf. Proxy forms duly completed should reach the Registered Office of 

the Company 48 hours before the time of the meeting. 

 

3. Members are requested to immediately notify the change in their address and also forward a copy of 

CNIC, if not yet furnished, at the Office of our Registrar Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Ltd., H.M. 

House,7-Bank Square, Lahore. 

 

4. CDC shareholders or their proxies are required to bring with them original CNIC or Passport along with 

the participant’s I.D. number and their account numbers at the time of attending the Meeting in order to 

authenticate their identity.  

 

5. Pursuant to Section 242 of the Companies Act 2017, all listed companies are mandated to pay dividend 

only by way of electronic mode, directly into the bank accounts of entitled members designated by them. 

Accordingly all members who have not yet provided their bank accounts (including 24 digits IBAN) to 

their participant/CDC Investor Account Service which maintains their CDC Account are requested to 

provide the same at the earliest, but not later than the first day of book closure, otherwise, the company 

would be constrained to withhold their amount of dividend, if any, in accordance with requirements of 

the Act and the Regulation. 

 

6. Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide SRO No. 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014 has 

provided an option to receive audited financial statements electronically through email, those 

shareholders who are interested in receiving the annual reports electronically in future are required to 

submit their email address at Registered Office of the Company on a standard request form which is 

available on Company’s website: www.shadman.com.pk. 

 

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2017 

 

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business to be transacted at the AGM of 

the Company to be held on October 28, 2019. 

 

Item No. 4 of the notice- Disposal of any Assets of the Company 

 

Accordingly, the directors have placed the matter before the shareholders for their approval and to pass 

the ordinary resolution as proposed in the notice of meeting. The directors are not interested, directly or 

indirectly, in the above business except to the extent of their shareholdings. 

  

http://www.shadman.com.pk/
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CHAIRPERSON’S REVIEW 

 

The composition of the Board of Directors represents mix of varied back grounds and rich experience in the field 

of business. 

 

The Board provides strategic directions to the company and directs the management to achieve objectives and 

goals of the Company. 

 

Annual evaluation of Board of Directors as required under the Code of Corporate Governance has been carried 

out to measure the performance and effectiveness of the Board against the objectives of the Company set at the 

beginning of the year and I report that: 

 

1. The overall performance of the Board for the year under review was satisfactory. 

2. The Board had full understanding of the vision and mission statements and frequently revisits them 

to up-date with the changing market conditions. 

3. The Board members attended all Board Meetings during the year and participated in important 

Company’s matters. 

4. The Board undertook an overall review of business risks to ensure effectiveness of risk identification, 

risk management and internal controls to safeguard assets and interest of the Company and 

Shareholders. 

5. The Board members regularly received reports on finance/budgets, production and other important 

matters which helped them to take effective decisions. 

6. The Board members were updated with regard to achievement of financial results through regular 

presentations by the management and accordingly received directions and oversight on a timely 

basis. 

 

I would like to thank the Board members for their commitments and untiring efforts by overcoming the 

difficulties posed by unstable market environments. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                   (Mrs. Ghazala Shahid) 

 
Place: Lahore           CHAIRPERSON 

Date: October 04, 2019 
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DIRECTORS REPROT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
The Directors are pleased to present the 40th Annual Report of the Company together with Audited Financial Statements 

and Auditors report thereon for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS 

Following is the brief highlights of the financial results of the Company for the year ended      June 30, 2019. 

 2019 2018(Restated) 

       Rupees in Million 

Turnover-net 431.006 546.927  

Gross Profit/(Loss) 17.649 (49.343)  

Operating Profit/(Loss) 59.385 (63.893)  

Profit/(Loss) before Taxation 17.773 (101.687)  

Profit/(Loss) after Taxation 12.642 (147.032)  

 

BREAK-UP VALUE AND EARNING PER SHARE 

The break-up value of share as on June 30, 2019 is Rs. 28.38 as compared to Rs. 20.84 (restated) as on June 30, 2018. The 

increase in breakup value is interest free loan from directors repayable at the discretion of the company.  The profit per 

share for the year ended June 30, 2019 is Rs. 0.72 as compared to restated loss per share of Rs. (8.34) of previous year as 

per computation given below: 

 2019 2018(Restated) 

                Rupees 

Profit/(loss) after Taxation 12,641,569 (147,031,545) 

No. of ordinary shares 17,636,719 17,636,719 

Profit/(loss) per share 0.72 (8.34) 

 

OVERVIEW 

The auditors continued the qualified opinion on reversal of mark-up of Rs. 179.89 million during the year June 30, 2015 

and non-recognition of further mark-up thereafter of Bank of Punjab as was reported in the previous year’s auditors 

report. The management is of the view that the financial obligation of the Company to Bank of Punjab has been confined 

to the amount involved in litigation and as per opinion of our legal counsel any over provision of mark-up which has been 

reversed in earlier year is not required, consequently no further provision have been recognized. 

So far as the qualified opinion of auditors regarding impairment allowance of trade debts of      Rs. 16.198 million is 

concerned, as stated by auditors that this amount is receivable from LESCO against supply of electricity and the matter is 

in the Court of Law. The management is confident of favorable outcome of this case as per opinion of our legal counsel 

consequently no impairment allowance has been recognized against these receivables.  

Finally, the auditors have also emphasized that due to circumstances described in note 2.2 material uncertainties exists 

about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, the management has prepared the annexed 
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financial statements on going concern basis due to reasons explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements. The auditors’ 

opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

During the year under review, the Company has earned after tax loss of Rs.12.642 million as compared to restated after 

tax loss of Rs.(147.032) million in previous year. The net turnover in the current year is Rs.431.006 million including export 

sales of Rs. 42.152 million as compared to Rs. 546.927 million of last year which shows decrease of 21.19% in turnover as 

a result of decrease in quantity of yarn produced. The company adopted alternative measures other than spinning of yarn 

which produced favorable financial results during the year. 

FUTURE OUTLOOK 

It is apparent and evident that Pakistan textile industry is facing an uncertain environment. The industry is facing an 

unprecedented crises and it seems that these conditions will continue to hit the industry until the government takes 

radical steps to revive it. In spite of providing relief, the government has recently imposed sales tax on textile products 

which is leaving very bad impression on buyers of textile products and the market is not absorbing the resultant increase 

in price of yarn.   

However, the management will continue to support the Company in the form of interest free directors’ loan for smooth 

running of its affairs. The Board is planning to exercise further stronger alternate options other than spinning of yarn to 

strengthen the financial position of the company. We hope that these measures will help to improve the financial 

performance of the Company in the coming year. 

DIVIDEND 

The directors have not recommended any dividend in view of weak financial position of the company for the year ended 

30th June, 2019. 

We confirm that: 

• The financial statements have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017and present fairly the state of its 
affairs, operating results, cash flow, comprehensive income and changes in equity. 

• Proper books of account have been maintained in the manner required under Companies. Act, 2017. 

• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements and accounting 
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. 

• International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of the financial 
statements. 

• The internal control system is being implemented and monitored. 

• There is no significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

• There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as required by the listing regulations, 
except as stated otherwise in the statement of compliance with best practices of the code of corporate governance. 

• The key operating and financial data for the last six years is annexed to this report. 

• Outstanding duties and taxes, if any, have been disclosed in the financial statements. 

• The Directors’ Report dealing with the performance of the company during the year ended June 30, 2019, future prospects 
and other matters of concern to the Company forms part of this report. 

BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S MEETINGS 

The number of Board meetings held during the year 2018-19 was four. The attendance of the directors is as under:- 

Sr. # Name of Directors                No. of Meetings Attended 

1. Mr. Shahid Mazhar          4        

2. Mrs. Ghazala Shahid          4        
3. Mr. Ahmed Bin Shahid          4 
4. Mrs. Naureen Rehan          4 
5. Mr. Muhammad Akhtar          4 
6. Mr. Shahid Mahmud          4 
7. Mr. Nadeem Bhatti           4 
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• Pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2019 is annexed to this report. 

• The following directors has made transactions in the shares of the company during the year: 

- Mr. Shahid Mazhar purchased           1,641,844 Shares 

- Mr. Shahid Mahmud purchased                   500 Shares 

- Mr. Nadeem Bhatti purchased                  500 Shares 

Except as mentioned above we confirm that Directors, CFO and Company Secretary and their spouse and minor children have 

made no transactions of the Company’s shares during the year. 

• The Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is annexed to this report. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (CSR) 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is about business giving back to society. As routine, we strive to safeguard the health 

and well-being of our employees, neighbors and customers, as well as the communities in which we live, work and co-

operate. 

SAFETY, HEALTH & ENVIRONMENT 

We maintain a culture of encouraging best health and safety practices amongst our workers by imparting awareness. We 

are pleased to inform you that there has been no incident of safety and health during the year. The Company actively 

strives to provide a safe and healthy workplace for its employees toward communities and environment in which it 

operates. There have been more plantations by increasing the area of green field to improve the environment. 

WORK-LIFE BALANCE 

In order to promote a health work-life balance, we strictly follow a 9.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. working routine. This ensures 

that our employees have plenty of time after work for extra-curricular activities with their families and friends.  

BUSINESS ETHICS AND ANTI-CORRUPTION MEASURES 

The Management is committed to conduct all business activities with integrity, honesty and in full compliances with the 
current laws and regulations. A code of conduct has been developed and approved by the Board, which is signed by all 
employees. 

ENERGY CONSERVATION 

The Company has taken many measures at mills premises to conserve the energy by fixing energy conserving devices. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

The Directors of the Company would like to take the opportunity to thank the Shareholders, valued clients and bankers 

for the co-operation extended by them during the course of business activities. The Directors are also pleased to record 

their appreciation for the continued diligence and devotion of the staff members and workers of the Company.  

 

 

On behalf of the Board of Directors    On behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

        
 

Chief Executive Officer      Director 

 

Place: Lahore       

Date: October 04, 2019 
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

With the Code of Corporate Governance for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

 

Shadman Cotton Mills Limited (“the Company”) has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies 

(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (“the Regulations”) in the following manner: 

1. The total number of directors are seven as per following: 

a) Male:     Five 

b) Female: Two 

2. The composition of Board of Directors (“the Board”) is as follows: 

 

Category Name 

Independent Director Mr. Nadeem Bhatti 

Executive Directors Mr. Shahid Mahmud 

Mr. Muhammad Akhtar 

Non-Executive 

Directors 
Mrs. Ghazala Shahid         (Chairperson) 

Mr. Shahid Mazhar            (Chief Executive) 

Mr. Ahmed Bin Shahid 

Mrs. Naureen Rehan 

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, 

including this company. 

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 

disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures. 

5. The Board has prepared a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 

Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with dates on which they were approved or 

amended has been maintained. 

6. All the powers of Board have been duly exercised and decision on relevant matters have been taken by the Board / 

shareholders as empowered by relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (“the Act”) and these Regulations. 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and, in her absence, by a director elected by the 

Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and Regulations with respect to 

frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board. 

8. The Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for the remuneration of directors in 

accordance with the Act and these regulations. 

9. In accordance with criteria specified in clause (xi) of CCG, one director of the company is exempted from the 

requirement of Directors’ training program, one director is certified and the rest of the directors to be trained. 

However, no director obtained training during the year. 

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, 

including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of 

the Regulation. 

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the 

Board. 
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12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 

a) Audit Committee 

-Mr.  Nadeem Bhatti (Chairman) 

-Mrs. Ghazala Shahid     

-Mrs. Naureen Rehan     

b) HR and Remuneration Committee 

-Mr. Nadeem Bhatti        (Chairman) 

-Mr. Ahmed Bin Shahid       

-Mr. Muhammad Akhtar   

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee 

for compliance. 

14. The frequency of meetings of the aforesaid committees were as per following: 

a) Audit Committee: Four quarterly meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 2019. 

b) HR and Remuneration Committee: One meeting during the financial year ended June 30, 2019. 

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function team who is considered suitably qualified and experienced 

for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company. 

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given satisfactory rating under the 

quality control review program of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (“the ICAP”) and registered with 

Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do 

not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International 

Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP. 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services 

except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have 

confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard. 

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with. 

 

 

 

                   (Mrs. Ghazala Shahid) 

 

 
Place: Lahore          CHAIRPERSON 

Date: October 04, 2019 
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Independent Auditor’s Review Report  

To the members of Shadman Cotton Mills Limited on the Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance 

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 

Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Shadman Cotton Mills Limited for the year ended 

June 30, 2019 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is 

to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the 

Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A 

review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the 

Company to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal 

control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider 

whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the 

effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit 

Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure 

compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured 

compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors 

upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the 

Company’s process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at 

arm’s length price or not. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does 

not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the 

Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Code as reflected in the paragraph 

reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance: 

 

Paragraph Reference 

Description 
Paragraph Reference Description 

9 
During the year no director attended Director’s Training Program and one director 

meeting the exemption criteria have not yet claimed his exemption. 

10 

CFO appointed by the Company is a graduate with more than seven years of 

managerial experience. However, no application is filed by to Company to SECP for 

suitability of the candidate. 

15 

Head of Internal Audit appointed by the company is a graduate with more than 

seven years of managerial experience. However, no application is filed by the 

Company to SECP for suitability of the candidate. 

 

 

 

 

Place: Lahore         MUSHTAQ & COMPANY 

Dated: October 04, 2019       Chartered Accountants 

Engagement Partner: 

          Zahid Hussain Zahid, ACA 
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Shadman Cotton Mills Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Opinion  

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Shadman Cotton Mills Limited (‘the Company’), which 

comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019, and the statement of profit or loss, the 

statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for 

the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and 

explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.  

In our opinion except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our 

report, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of 

financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of 

changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with 

the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the 

state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2019 and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the changes in 

equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.  

Basis for Qualified Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. 

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 

the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

a) As referred to in note 18.1.3 to these financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2015, the company has 

reversed accrued interest/markup amounting to Rs.179.89 million payables to The Bank of Punjab based on the 

advice of the Company's legal advisor. Further the company has not recognized interest/markup on debt finances 

from July 01, 2015 to June 30, 2018 amounting to Rs.133 million and Rs.50.91 million during current year ended 

June 30, 2019 based on the advice of the Company's legal advisor. As a result of reversal, the interest/markup 

recognized in payable to The Bank of Punjab stands at 103.52 million as at June 30, 2019 as against Rs. 633.43 

million claimed by bank including cost of funds. Had the reversal not been made and liability for interest/markup 

been recognized, the accumulated losses would have been higher by Rs. 363.80 million and profit for the period 

would have been reduced by Rs.50.91 million. The book balance of Running Finance facility from The Bank of 

Punjab is not reconciled with direct confirmation from the bank. There is a difference of Rs. 2.861 million between 

two sources. In the matter of Habib Bank Limited, Company had not recognized expenses for the cost of suit and 

cost of funds on outstanding liability, the case is decreed in favour of Habib Bank Limited by the Banking Court, 

appeal of which had been filed in Honorable Lahore High Court. In the absence of any estimate, we are unable to 

calculate its impact on the financial statements. 

b) As referred in note 11.1 this liability of Rs. 18.316 million was payable to Excise and Taxation Officer (ETO) 

Government of Sindh. Company had filed the suit against ETO in Sindh High Court against this levy. No copy of suit 

filed provided to us neither legal advisor confirmed this suit in his direct confirmation. 

c) Trade debts includes an amount receivable from LESCO of Rs. 16.198 million, this receivable is past due since 30 th 

June, 2011. The balance is not directly confirmed by the party as the said balance is also under litigation. In our 

opinion, this past due balance has been impaired but no loss allowance in respect of this receivable balance has 

been made in the financial statements. 
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to note 2.2 in the financial statements which indicates that as at June 30, 2019, the Company 

has accumulated losses of Rs. 355.84 million. Its current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 567.37 million. 

The Company has defaulted in repayment of its debt finances and interest/markup thereon amounting to Rs. 

539.74 million. The providers of debts finances have filed recovery suits for recovery of these debts finances and 

interest/markup thereon. These factors indicate existence of material uncertainty that raises doubts about the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern and that the Company may not be able to discharge its 

liabilities and realize its assets in the normal course of business. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this 

matter. 

Key Audit Matter(s) 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 

the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 

financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 

on these matters. 

 In addition to matter described in Basis for Qualified Opinion and Material Uncertainty Related to Going 

Concern section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 

communicated in our report: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

  

 Key audit matter(s)  How the matter was addressed in our audit  

 Contingent Liabilities 

The Company has disclosed significant open 

legal cases and other contingencies in Note 

18. The assessment of the existence of the 

present legal obligation, and analysis of a 

reliable estimate, requires management’s 

judgement to ensure appropriate accounting 

or disclosures. 

 

Due to the level of judgement relating to 

recognition, valuation and presentation of 

provisions and contingent liabilities, this is 

considered to be a key audit matter. 

As part of our audit procedures we have 

assessed management’s processes to identify 

new possible obligations and changes in 

existing obligations for compliance with IAS 

37 requirements. 

We have analyzed significant changes from 

prior periods and obtained an understanding 

of these items and assumptions applied. 

We have obtained legal representation letters 

on the main outstanding legal cases. As part 

of our audit procedures we have reviewed 

minutes of board meetings. 

We have held regular meetings with 

management and legal counsels. We have 

assessed the appropriateness of presentation 

in the  financial statements. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises directors’ report and last 

six years’ financial analysis but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 

in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 

with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 

2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 

or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 

could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 

for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by management.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 

doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 

are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
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date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 

going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation.  

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 

during our audit.  

We also provided the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 

We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 

matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 

report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 

interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that except for the matters referred in Basis for Qualified Opinion section 

of our report, in our opinion:  

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);  

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of 

changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity 

with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;  

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the 

Company’s business; and  

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the “Zakat and Ushr” Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).  

Other Matter Paragraph 

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018 were audited by another auditor who 

expressed a modified opinion on those statements as on November 06, 2018. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zahid Hussain Zahid, ACA.  

 
MUSHTAQ & CO 

Chartered Accountants  

 

Lahore. 

Dated: October 04, 2019 
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Note 2019 2018

(Restated)

Rupees Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital

18,000,000 (2018: 18,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 180,000,000    180,000,000       

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 7 176,367,190    176,367,190       

Capital reserve 8 53,218,752      53,218,752         

Accumulated losses (355,834,416) (408,113,726)     

Equity portion of Director's loan 14 120,000,000 -                     

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 9 506,785,111 546,053,347

TOTAL EQUITY 500,536,637    367,525,563       

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term finances - secured 10 -                   -                     

Deferred liabilities 11 21,251,163      22,214,872         

21,251,163      22,214,872         

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 12 143,208,370    254,816,161       

Accrued interest/markup 13 103,514,885    103,514,885       

Short term borrow ings 14 341,546,148    435,717,148       

Current portion of non-current liabilities 15 105,968,864    105,968,864       

Ijarah rentals payables 16 28,544,690      28,544,690         

Provision for taxation 17 5,282,190        6,561,741           

728,065,147    935,123,489       

TOTAL LIABILITIES 749,316,310    957,338,361       

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 18

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,249,852,947 1,324,863,924    

The annexed notes 1 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2019
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Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

(Restated)

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 19 1,060,980,372 1,129,499,938 

Long term deposits - unsecured, considered good 20 28,180,774      27,865,585      

Deferred taxation 21 -                  -                  

1,089,161,146 1,157,365,523 

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools 22 13,778,882      55,730,572      

Stock in trade 23 15,479,636      60,747,497      

Trade debts - unsecured 24 76,378,150      18,756,676      

Loans and advances 25 9,308,087        9,720,021        

Trade deposits and short term prepayments 26 3,500,000        3,500,000        

Other receivables 27 5,851,796        2,814,094        

Tax refunds due from Government 28 12,218,236      13,654,342      

Short term investments 29 62,279             70,511             

Cash and bank balances 30 24,114,735      2,504,688        

160,691,801    167,498,401    

TOTAL ASSETS 1,249,852,947 1,324,863,924 

The annexed notes 1 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2019
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Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

(Restated)

Turnover - net 31 431,005,657      546,927,040      

Cost of sales 32 (413,356,190)     (596,269,741)     

Gross profit/ (loss) 17,649,467        (49,342,701)       

Selling and distribution expenses 33 (3,195,149)         (5,098,269)         

Administrative and general expenses 34 (20,602,516)       (21,442,012)       

(23,797,665)       (26,540,281)       

Other income 35 65,532,816        11,990,231        

Operating profit/ (loss) 59,384,618        (63,892,751)       

Finance cost 36 (277,188)            (543,338)            

Other expenses 37 (41,334,167)       (37,250,868)       

Profit/ (Loss) before taxation 17,773,263        (101,686,957)     

Taxation 38 (5,131,694)         (45,344,588)       

Profit/ (Loss) after taxation 12,641,569        (147,031,545)     

Profit/ (Loss) per share - basic and diluted 39 0.72                   (8.34)                  

The annexed notes 1 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
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Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

(Restated)

Profit/ (Loss) for the year 12,641,569      (147,031,545)  

Other comprehensive income

   Item that w ill not be subsequently reclassif ied to profit or loss:

 - Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability 11.2.4 520,429           (393,803)         

 - Deferred tax on remeasurement of staff retirement benefits (150,924)         114,203           

 - Revaluation surplus on PPE 9 -                  55,985,538      

 - Deferred tax on revaluation surplus of PPE -                  37,689,863      

Total comprehensive Income/ (Loss) 13,011,074      (53,635,744)    

The annexed notes 1 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

(Restated)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash (used in)/  generated from operations 40 (46,302,986)     2,423,232      

Payments for:

Employees retirement benefits (1,719,076)       (1,438,327)     

Interest/markup on borrow ings (277,188)          (153,336)        

Income tax (5,126,063)       (2,839,517)     

Net cash (Used in)/ generated from operating activities (53,425,312)     (2,007,948)     

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 52,780,000      24,425,000    

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,258,452)       (5,726,369)     

Long term deposit (315,189)          (421,156)        

Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities 49,206,359      18,277,475    

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Increase in short term borrow ings 25,829,000      (14,340,693)   

Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities 25,829,000      (14,340,693)   

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21,610,047      1,928,834      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2,504,688        575,854         

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT END OF THE YEAR 41 24,114,735      2,504,688      

The annexed notes 1 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
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Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Balance as at July 01, 2017 176,367,190   53,218,752     (283,352,405)  -                  474,927,770          421,161,307    

Loss for the year -                  -                  (147,031,545)  -                  -                         (147,031,545)   

Other Comprehensive Income/ (loss) for the year -                  -                  (279,600)         -                  93,675,401            93,395,801      

Transaction with owners -                  -                  -                  -                  -                         -                   

Current year incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax -                  -                  22,549,824     -                  (22,549,824)           -                   

Balance as at June 30, 2018 (Restated) 176,367,190   53,218,752     (408,113,726)  -                  546,053,347          367,525,563    

Balance as at July 01, 2018 - (Restated) 176,367,190   53,218,752     (408,113,726)  -                  546,053,347          367,525,563    

Profit for the year -                  -                  12,641,569     -                  -                         12,641,569      

Other comprehensive Income for the year -                  -                  369,505          -                  -                         369,505           

Transaction with owners -                  -                  -                  -                  -                         -                   

Current year incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax -                  -                  8,080,788       -                  (8,080,788)             -                   

Surplus adjustment due to disposal of Land and building -                  -                  31,187,448     -                  (31,187,448)           -                   

Transferred from Liability portion of Director's loan -                  -                  -                  120,000,000   -                         120,000,000    

Balance as at June 30, 2019 176,367,190   53,218,752     (355,834,416)  120,000,000   506,785,111          500,536,637    

The annexed notes 1 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

 Issued 

Subscribed 

and paid-up 

capital 

 Capital 

Reserve 

 Accumulated 

Losses 

 Equity 

portion of 

Director's 

loan   

 Total Equity 

 Surplus on 

revaluation of 

property, plant 

and equipment 

(Net of Def. tax) 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 

 
 

 

  

1

1.1

2

2.1

-

-

-

2.2 Appropriateness of the going concern assumption

a)

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting

Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act 2017;

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the

provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Shadman Cotton Mills Limited ('the Company') was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited

company on November 24, 1979 and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Company is

engaged in the manufacturing and sale of yarn. The registered office of the Company is situated at 2/E,

Block G, Mushtaq Ahmed Gurmani Road, Gulberg II, Lahore. Manufacturing facilities and land covering

358 Kanals of the company is located at 3.5 K.M, Feroz Watoan, Warburton Road, Kot Shah

Mohammad tehsil, Nankana Sahib.

Basis of Preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan

comprise of:

In the opinion of Company’s legal counsel the ongoing litigation between the Company and The

Bank of Punjab regarding recovery of debt finances and interest/mark-up thereon will take a few

years to conclude as such the Company will be able to settle its liabilities to The Bank of Punjab

through the stream of cash flows from future sales.

The Company has been facing operational losses mainly due to decrease in selling prices in local as

well as international markets, the on-going power crises, dumping of Indian yarn at low prices along with

other factors, including economic instability and unfavorable textile policy of the Government, affecting

the textile industry. The Company has not been able to utilize its production capacity at an optimum

level due to which the desired profitability remained unachieved.

As a result, the company has accumulated losses of Rs. 355.834 million as at the reporting date. The

company's current liabilities exceeds its current assets by Rs. 567.373 million.The company has

negative operating cash flows amounting to Rs 53.425 million during the year ended June 30, 2019. The

Company has defaulted in repayment of its debt finances and interest/mark-up thereon amounting to

Rs. 539.74 million. The providers of debt finances have filed recovery suits for recovery of these debts

finances and interest/mark-up thereon. These factors indicate existence of material uncertainity that

raises doubts about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, these financial

statements have been prepared on going concern basis based on the following:
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b)

c)

d)

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.5.1

¤

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention except for certain

financial instruments at fair value and employees retirement benefits at present value. In these financial

statements, except for cash flow statements , all transactions have been accounted for on accrual

basis.

The management is taking steps towards reduction of fixed cost and rationalization of other

expenses including right sizing of man power, resource conservation and close monitoring of

fixed cost.

The management has started utilizing the doubling segment considering the demand of doubled

yarn in local and international markets and Company have plans to continue to generate revenue

by doubling of yarn. 

Directrors have conveyed their commitment for providing continued financial support. 

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that

are effective in the current year :

Following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year begining on or after July

01, 2018. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the

Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial

statements other than certain additional disclosures.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ – This standard replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the

recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of

financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. It also includes an expected 

credit losses model that replaces IAS 39 incurred loss impairment model.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is also the company's functional

currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been rounded to the nearest 

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable

in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the

application of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The

estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that 

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making

the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that

period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgments made by the management in the application of approved accounting standards, as

applicable in Pakistan, that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a

significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 45 to these financial

statements.
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2.5.2

¤

¤

¤

¤

3

3.1

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ – This standard introduces a single five-step model for

revenue recognition with a comprehensive framework based on core principle that an entity should

recognise revenue representing the transfer of promised goods or services under separate performance

obligations under the contract to customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the

entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. IFRS 15 replaces the previous

revenue standards: lAS 18 Revenue, lAS 11 Construction Contracts, and the related interpretations on

revenue recognition.

'The changes laid down by these standards do not have any significant impact on these financial

statements of the Company. However, related changes to the accounting policies have been made in

these  financial statements. 

There are a number of other minor amendments and interpretations to other approved accounting

standards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the company and therefore have not

been presented here.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Borrowings

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized initially at cost, less attributable transaction cost.

Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any

difference between cost and redemption value being recognized in the income statement over the period

of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

The other new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are

mandatory for the financial year beginning on January 1, 2018 are considered not to be relevant or to

have any significant effect on the Company's financial reporting and operations.

Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet

effective and have not been early adopted by the company

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the

Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting

periods beginning on or after 01 July 2019:

IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ is applicable to accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. IFRS 16

will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all the leases

on the balance sheet date. This standard removes the current distinction between operating and finance

leases and requires recognition of an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to

pay rentals for virtually all lease contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value

leases. The accounting by lessor will not significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result

of the new guidance on the definition of lease. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration. The Company has yet to assess the impact of this standard on its financial statements.

IFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’: (effective for periods beginning on or after January

01, 2019). This IFRIC clarifies how the recognition and measurement requirements of IAS 12 ‘Income

taxes’, are applied where there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The IFRIC explains how to

recognise and measure deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities where there is uncertainty

over a tax treatment. An uncertain tax treatment is any tax treatment applied by an entity where there is

uncertainty over whether that treatment will be accepted by the tax authority. The IFRIC applies to all

aspects of income tax accounting where there is an uncertainty regarding the treatment of an item,

including taxable profit or loss, the tax bases of assets and liabilities, tax losses and credits and tax

rates. The Company is yet to assess the full impact of the interpretation.
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3.2

3.3

Employee benefits

Short term employees benefits

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in comprehensive income for the period in which these arise.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit

or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is

recognized in equity.

Current

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or

substantively enacted by the reporting date, and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of

previous years. Provision for current tax is based on higher of the taxable income at current rates of

taxation in Pakistan after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any, or

minimum of turnover. However, for income covered under final tax regime, taxation is based on

applicable tax rates under such regime. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of the current or

prior periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the current or

prior periods is recognized as an asset.

Deferred

The company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits to be paid in

exchange for services rendered by employees as a liability after deducting amount already paid and as

an expense in profit or loss unless it is included in the cost of inventories or property, plant and

equipment as permitted or required by the approved accounting standards. If the amount paid exceeds

the undiscounted amount of benefits, the excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the

prepayment would lead to a reduction in future payments or cash refund.

The Company provides for compensated absences of its employees on unavailed balance of leaves in

the period in which the leaves are earned.

Post retirement benefits

Defined benefit plans

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme (defined benefit plan) for all its permanent

employees who have completed minimum qualifying period of service as defined under the respective

scheme. Liability is adjusted annually to cover the obligation and the adjustment is charged to profit or

loss. The determination of the Company's obligation under the scheme requires assumptions to be

made of future outcomes, the principal ones being in respect of increases in remuneration, expected

average remaining working lives of employees and discount rate used to derive present value of defined

benefit obligation.

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet represent the present value of the defined benefit obligation as 

adjusted for unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and unrecognized past service cost.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method providing for temporary differences

between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts

used for tax purposes. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income that is

subject to final tax regime is also considered in accordance with the requirement of "Technical Release -

27" of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. Deferred tax is measured at rates that are

expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on laws that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all

taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary differences to 

the extent that future taxable profits will be available against which temporary differences can be

utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is

no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is not recognized for timing differences that are not expected to reverse and for the

temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of goodwill and initial recognition of assets and

liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that at the time of transaction affects

neither the accounting nor the taxable profit. 
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3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Dividend

Dividend is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved by shareholders.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Owned assets

Operating fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses with the exception of freehold land, which is stated at revalued amount, and

buildings, plant and machinery which are carried at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation.

Cost comprises purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after

deducting trade discounts and rebates, and includes other costs directly attributable to the acquisition

or construction, erection and installation.

Subsequent cost

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the company has a legal or constructive obligation

as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to

settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are recognized and carried at cost, which is the fair value

of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not invoices to

the company.

Where the carrying amount of asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount it is written down

immediately to its recoverable amount.

Capital work in process

Capital work in progress and stores held for capital expenditure are stated at cost and represents

expenditure incurred on property, plant and equipment during construction and installation. Cost

includes borrowing cost as referred in accounting policy of borrowing cost. Transfers are made to

relevant property, plant and equipment category as and when assets are available for use.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying

amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to

the company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is

derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in

profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to income on reducing balance method over its estimated useful life at the rates

specified in property, plant and equipment note. Depreciation on additions to property, plant and

equipment is charged from the month in which an item is acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is 

charged for the month in which the item is disposed off.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if

impact on depreciation is material.

The gain or loss on disposal of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and

the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense.

Impairment

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive

income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of the Company’s business model for managing

the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
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Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration

given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured to

fair value, amortized cost or cost as the case may be. Any gain or loss on the recognition and de-

recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is included in the profit or loss for the period in which it

arises. 

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flow represents solely

payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial

assets, impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses, and gain or loss arising on

derecognition are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model

whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income

or assets that are designated at fair value through profit or loss using fair value option, are measured at

fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair

value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it arises. 

Equity instrument financial assets are measured at fair value and subsequent to initial recognition

changes in fair value of these financial assets are normally recognised in profit or loss. Dividends from

such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive

payment is established. Where an election is made to present fair value gains and losses on equity

instruments in other comprehensive income there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains

and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.

Amortised Cost

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that

comprise the financial asset. Assets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created

as a result of statutory requirements imposed by the Government are not the financial instruments of the 

Company.

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value

less transaction costs. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at

fair value and transaction costs are expensed on profit or loss.

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the effective yield method. 

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or

expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender or substantially 

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange and

modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,

and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.10 Impairment

Financial Assets

Non-Financial Assets

3.11

3.12 Stores and spares

3.13

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates

that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into

account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no

reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether

there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is

estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognized as an

expense in the profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of

disposal and value-in-use. Value-in-use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash

flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the

risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest

levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). An impairment loss

is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment

loss had been recognized.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and only the net amount is reported in the balance

sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the company

intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Average manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods, consist of direct material

and proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs of

completion and selling expenses.

Finished goods At average manufacturing cost or net realizable value whichever is lower

Waste Net realizable value

Raw material in transit is stated at invoice price plus other charges paid thereon upto the balance sheet

date.

Stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on a weighted 

average basis. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred

thereon.

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value except waste which is valued at net

realizable value. Cost is determined as follows.

Raw material At weighted average cost or replacement cost whichever is lower

Work in progress At average manufacturing cost

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its

financial assets. The Company applies the simplified approach to recognise lifetime expected credit

losses for trade debts, due from customers and contract assets. The Company does not track changes

in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,

adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. 
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3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

4

Transactions with related parties are priced at comparable uncontrolled market price. All transactions

involving related parties arising in the normal course business are conducted at arm’s length using

valuation modes, as admissible. Parties are said to be related when they meet the definition as provided

in the Companies Act, 2017. 

Capital Management

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred on long term finances directly attributable for the construction / acquisition of

qualifying assets are capitalized up to the date, the respective assets are available for the intended use.

All other mark-up, interest and other related charges are taken to the profit and loss account currently.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date

of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are retranslated into Pak Rupees at

the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. 

Exchange differences, if any, are taken to profit and loss account.

Transactions with related party

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of goods is transferred to customers.

Interest income is recognized on the basis of constant periodic rate of return.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established i.e. the book closure

date of the investee company declaring the dividend.

Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on revaluation of securities classified as ‘fair value through other

comprehensive income’ are included in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is

unconditional, unless they contain significant financing component in which case such are recognised

at fair value. The Company holds the trade debts with the objective of collecting the contractual cash

flows and therefore measures the trade debts subsequently after deducting allowance for ECLs. 

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, cash in transit and balances with bank for the

purpose of cash flow statement.

Ijarah

Leases in which the significant portion of risks and rewards and ownership is retained by the lessor are

classified as Ijarah. Payments made under ijarah agreements are charged to statement of profit or loss

on straight line basis over the lease term of ijarah agreement.

Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on revaluation of securities classified as ‘fair value through profit or

loss’ are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and

market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The board of directors monitors

the return on capital and level of dividends to ordinary shareholders. The company seeks to keep a

balance between the higher return that might be possible with higher level of borrowings and the

advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. There were no changes in the company's

approach to capital management during the year. Further the company is not subject to externally

imposed capital requirements.
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5

The effect of rectification of error is summarised below.

There was no effect on statement of cash flows due to retrospective application of change in accounting policy.

6 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE

RECTIFICATION OF ERROR

During the year, the management of the company has changed its estimate with regards to depreciation of

building and plant & machinery, after detailed review by a certified reviewer and technical team of the

company. The average life of the building, plant and machinery has been re-estimated more as against past

level of estimates. Depreciation rate on building and plant and machinery has been decreased from 5 to 2.5

percent on reducing balance method. The change in estimate is dealt under International Accounting Standard

(IAS) 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors". Had the previous rate of

depreciation been used, profit for the year would have been decreased by Rs. 14.744 million and the written

down value of operating fixed assets would have been decreased by the same amount. The impact of change

of this estimate in future periods is not disclosed because estimating the effect in future periods is

impracticable.

In the previous year there was errors in the calculation of revaluation surplus on the buliding and plant and

machinery. The rectification of error has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with the

requirements of IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' and comparative

figures have been restated.

Re-statement As 

Revaluation 

Surplus

re-stated

Effect on balance sheet

Property, plant and equipment 1,222,974,041  (93,474,103) 1,129,499,938 

Revaluation surplus on property 589,238,613     (43,185,266) 546,053,347    

plant and equipment

Investment Property -                    -               -                  

Accumulated Losses (357,824,889)    (50,288,837) (408,113,726)  

Effect on statement of changes

in equity

Revaluation surplus on property

plant and equipment 589,238,613     (43,185,266) 546,053,347    

Accumulated losses (357,824,889)    (50,288,837) (408,113,726)  

Effect on statement of profit or

loss

Cost of sales (596,269,741)    (596,269,741)  

Other operating expenses (4,601,084)        (32,649,784) (37,250,868)    

Taxation (27,591,332)      (17,639,052) (45,230,385)    

As at June 30, 2018

-----------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------

As previously 

reported
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7 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2015 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued for cash 116,273,440    116,273,440    

Issued as fully paid bonus shares 60,093,750      60,093,750      

176,367,190    176,367,190    

8 CAPITAL RESERVE 

Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

9 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (NET OF DEFERRED TAX)

As at beginning of the year 546,053,347    474,927,770    

Surplus arising on land -                  168,302,500    

Surplus arising on building -                  65,808,261      

Surplus reversal on plant & machinery -                  (178,125,223)  

-                  55,985,538      

Incremental depreciation recognized in other comprehensive income

Incremental depreciation for the year (11,381,392)    (31,760,316)    

Deferred taxation 3,300,604        9,210,492        

(8,080,788)      (22,549,824)    

Surplus adjustment due to disposal of Land and building (31,187,448)    -                  

Deferred tax adjustment due to revaluation on building -                  (19,084,396)    

Deferred tax adjustment due to reversal of surplus on plant and machinery -                  51,656,315      

Deferred tax adjustment attributable to changes in tax rates -                  5,117,944        

As at end of the year 506,785,111    546,053,347    

9.1

6,009,3756,009,375

17,636,719 17,636,719

This represents premium on issue of right ordinary shares recognized under Section 83(1) of the repealed Companies

Ordinance, 1984.

In the previous year there w as an error in the calculation of revaluation surplus/(loss) on factory building and plant & machinery, 

the rectif ication of error has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance w ith the requirements of IAS 8 'Accounting

Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' and comparative figures have been restated, the effects of restatement

is show n in note 5.

2019 2018

No. of shares No. of shares

11,627,344 11,627,344
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Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

10 LONG TERM FINANCES - SECURED

These represent long term finances utilized under 

 interest/markup arrangements from banking companies

The Bank of Punjab - Demand finance - I 10.1 17,863,256      17,863,256      

The Bank of Punjab - Demand finance - II 10.2 80,000,000      80,000,000      

Habib Bank Limited - Term finance 10.3 8,105,608        8,105,608        

105,968,864    105,968,864    

Current maturity presented under current liabilities (105,968,864)  (105,968,864)  

-                  -                  

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4 For restrictions on title, and assets pledged as security, refer to note 47 to the f inancial statements.

11 DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Long term payables - Secured 11.1 18,316,926      18,316,926      

Employees retirement benefits 11.2 2,934,237        3,897,946        

      21,251,163       22,214,872 

11.1 Long term payables - secured

11.2 Employees retirement benefits

Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

11.2.1 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

As at beginning of the year 3,897,946        3,427,780        

Charged / (credit) to profit or loss for the year 11.2.2 1,275,796        1,514,690        

Benefits paid during the year (1,719,076)      (1,438,327)      

Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income 11.2.4 (520,429)         393,803           

As at end of the year 2,934,237        3,897,946        

This represents infrastructure cess levied by Excise and Taxation Officer ('ETO') Government of Sindh on movement of

imported goods entering the Sindh Province from outside Pakistan. The Company and others have filed a suit before the Sindh

High Court ('SHC') challenging the levy. The Supreme Court of Pakistan through order has declared all levies and collections

before December 26, 2008 to be invalid. During the pendency of decision on the levies and collections on or after December 26,

2008, SHC has directed the petitioners to pay 50% of liability for levies on or after December 26, 2008 to ETO and to arrange

bank gaurantees for the remaining amount in favour of ETO. The liability represents 50% of levies after December 26, 2008

against w hich guarantees have been arranged in favour of ETO (see note ).

The finance w as obtained from The Bank of Punjab to finance capital expenditure and is secured by charge over operating

fixed assets of the Company. The finance carried interest/markup at 7% per annum, payable quarterly. The finance w as

repayable in ten equal half yearly installments w ith the first installment w as due in September 2010. The entire outstanding

balance is over due as at the reporting date. Refer to note 18.1.1 for details of litigation betw een the Company and The Bank of

Punjab regarding recovery of this amount.

The finance w as been obtained from Habib Bank Limited to finance capital expenditure and w as secured by charge over

operating fixed assets of the Company. The finance carried interest/markup at three months KIBOR plus 1.50% per annum,

payable quarterly. The finance w as repayable in eighteen equal monthly installments w ith the first installment w as due in June

2010. The entire outstanding balance is over due as at the reporting date. Refer to note 18.1.2 for details of litigation betw een

the Company and Habib Bank Limited regarding recovery of this amount.

The finance w as obtained from The Bank of Punjab to finance capital expenditure and is secured by charge over operating

fixed assets of the Company. The finance carried interest/markup at six months KIBOR plus 2% per annum payable semi

anually. The finance w as repayable in eight equal half yearly installments w ith the first installment w as due in October 2010.

The entire outstanding balance is over due as at the reporting date. Refer to note 18.1.1 for details of litigation betw een the

Company and The Bank of Punjab regarding recovery of this amount.
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11.2.2 Charge to profit or loss

Current service cost 1,032,723        1,304,772        

Interest cost 243,073           209,918           

1,275,796        1,514,690        

11.2.3 The charge to profit or loss has been allocated as follows

Cost of sales 32 453,934           947,238           

Administrative and general expenses 34 821,862           567,452           

1,275,796        1,514,690        

11.2.4 Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss arising from changes in:

Demographic assumptions -                  -                  

Financial assumptions -                  -                  

Experience adjustments (520,429)         393,803           

(520,429)         393,803           

11.2.5 Principal actuarial assumptions

2019 2018

Discount rate 12.50% 8.00%

Expected rates of increase in salary 11.50% 7.00%

Expected average remaining w orking lives of employees 9 years 10 years

11.2.6 Average duration of the defined benefit obligation

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is nine years.

11.2.7 Expected charge to profit or loss for the next financial year

The expected charge to profit or loss for the year ending June 30, 2020 amounts to Rs. 1.690 million.

11.2.8 Sensitivity analysis

Change Defined Change Defined

in actuarial benefit in actuarial benefit

assumption obligation assumption obligation

Rupees Rupees

Discount rate + 1% 2,429,585      + 1% 3,310,101        

- 1% 3,529,300      - 1% 4,603,091        

Expected rate of increase in salary + 1% 3,529,300      + 1% 4,603,091        

- 1% 2,421,178      - 1% 3,299,979        

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is

unlikely that the change in assumptions w ould occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of defined benefit obligation as at the reporting date

has been calculated using projected unit credit method, w hich is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit

obligation to be recognized in these f inancial statements.

A change in expected remaining w orking lives of employees is not expected to have a material impact on the present value of

defined benefit obligation. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis for the same has not been carried out.

Present value of defined benefit obligation has been determined using projected unit credit method. The liability as at the

reporting date is based on actuarial valuation carried out by independent actuaries. The principal assumptions used in

determining present value of defined benefit obligation are:

An analysis of sensitivity for discount rate and expected rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of

defined benefit obligation as at the reporting date show ing how the defined benefit obligation w ould have been affected by

changes in relevant actuarial assumption that w ere reasonably possible at that date is as follow s:

2019 2018
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Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

(Restated)

12 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors - Unsecured 58,791,679      126,035,014    

Accrued liabilities 50,409,593      86,059,017      

Advances from customers - Unsecured 28,374,699      40,776,398      

Workers' Profit Participation Fund 12.1 2,899,060        1,776,106        

Workers' Welfare Fund 12.2 -                  45,237             

Other payables - Unsecured 2,733,339        124,389           

143,208,370    254,816,161    

12.1 Workers' Profit Participation Fund

As at beginning of the year 1,776,106        1,630,203        

Charged for the year 944,811           -                  

Interest on funds utilized by the Company 12.1.1 178,143           145,903           

As at end of the year 2,899,060        1,776,106        

12.1.1 Interest has been charged at 10.03% (2018:8.95%) per annum.

Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

12.2 Workers' Welfare Fund

As at beginning of the year 45,237             619,580           

Charged to profit or loss for the year 37 -                  45,237             

Paid during the period (45,237)           (619,580)         

As at end of the year -                  45,237             

13 ACCRUED INTEREST/MARKUP

Long term finance 39,813,820      39,813,820      

Short term borrow ings 63,701,065      63,701,065      

103,514,885    103,514,885    

13.1

Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

14 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Secured

These represent short term finances utilized under 

 interest/markup arrangements from banking companies

Borrow ings from Banking companies 14.1 301,706,774    308,242,774    

Unsecured

Loan from director 159,839,374    127,474,374    

Transferred to Equity 14.3 (120,000,000)  -                  

14.2 39,839,374      127,474,374    

341,546,148    435,717,148    

14.1

The entire balance of accrued interest/mark-up represents overdue interest/mark-up. Refer to note 18 for details of litigation

betw een the Company and lending banks regarding recovery of this amount.

These facilities w ere obtained from various banking companies for w orking capital requirements and are secured by charge

over all present and future current assets of the Company. These carried markup at the rates ranging from three month to six

months KIBOR plus 1.35% to 2% per annum payable quarterly. These facilities have expired and the entire outstanding balance

is overdue as at the reporting date. Refer to note 18 for details of litigation betw een the Company and lending banks regarding

recovery of this amount.
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14.2

14.3

14.4 For restrictions on title, and assets pledged as security, refer to note 47 to the f inancial statements.

Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

(Restated)

15 CURRENT MATURITY OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term finances 10 105,968,864    105,968,864    

16 IJARAH RENTALS PAYABLES

Ijarah rentals payable 16.1 28,544,690      28,544,690      

16.1

Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

17 PROVISION FOR TAXATION 

Taxation         5,282,190         6,561,741 

17.1 Taxation

Balance at the beginning         6,561,741         3,914,834 

Provision made during the year         5,282,190         6,561,741 

      11,843,931       10,476,575 

Adjusted during the year        (6,561,741)        (3,914,834)

5,282,190        6,561,741        

18 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

18.1 Contingencies

18.1.1

18.1.2

18.1.3

18.1.4 A suit has been filed by the company before the Civil Court, Lahore against recovery of outstanding balance amounting to Rs.

16.198 million from Lahore Electric Supply Company (LESCO). The case is pending in court how ever legal advisor is of the view

that the outcome of the case w ill be in favor of the company. 

The Company is contesting recovery suite filed by Habib Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 8.996 million on account of principal and

markup claimed in the suit. The suits w as decreed by the Banking Court for an amount of Rs. 8.105 million. Appeal is pending in

Lahore High Court.

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the company has reversed accrued interest/markup amounting to Rs.179.89 million

payable to The Bank of Punjab based on the advice of the Company's legal advisor. Further the company has not recognized

interest/markup on debt finances from July 01, 2015 to June 30, 2018 amounting to Rs.133 million and Rs.50.91 million during the

year ended June 30, 2019, based on the advice of the Company's legal advisor. 

The Company is contesting recovery suit f iled by The Bank of Punjab in year 2011 amounting to Rs. 577.391 million on account

of principal and markup claimed in the suit along w ith cost of funds, estimated at Rs. 632.99 million upto June 30, 2019, and all

other claims arising therein till realization. A counter suit has been filed by the Company against The Bank of Punjab, before the

Lahore High Court w herein, besides other payers, the Company has claimed Rs. 744.348 million on account of acts and

omission committed by the Bank against the Company. The suits is pending before the Lahore High Court and has been fixed for

arguments.

This represents temporary loan obtained from director of the Company. The loan is unsecured and interest free.

These represent Ijarah obtained under sale and lease back arrangements for acquiring plant and machinery. The lease w as

priced at three months KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum, subject to floor and cap of 10% and 24% per annum respectively. Lease

rentals w ere payable quarterly over a tenor of three years w ith the first installment due from November 2012. Under the terms

of agreement, taxes, repairs, replacements and insurance costs in respect of assets subject to ijarah lease are borne by the

Company. The lease term has expired and the entire outstanding balance represents overdue installments.

At July 1st, 2018, the company has revised the terms of old director's loan. As per terms of new agreement, out of total existing

loan , an amount of Rs. 120 million shall be repayable only at the discretion of the Company. Therefore, this amount is accounted

for in accordance w ith the 'Technical Release- 32' and is classif ied under equity.  
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18.1.5

18.2 Commitments

18.2.1 There are no know n commitments as at the reporting date.

Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

(Restated)

19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 19.1 1,060,980,372 1,129,499,938 

Capital w ork in progress 19.2 -                  -                  

1,060,980,372 1,129,499,938 

A suit has been filed by the Meezan bank limited before the banking court, Lahore, against recovery of outstanding balance of

ijarah rentals amounting to Rs. 51.419 million.
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Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

(Restated)

19.1.2 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follow s:

Cost of sales 32 24,128,236      49,089,921      

Administrative and general expenses 34 1,935,366        1,421,569        

26,063,603      50,511,490      

19.1.3

Accumulated Net

Cost depreciation book value

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Freehold land 47,334,333      -                  47,334,333      

Factory building 163,020,186    119,205,476    43,814,710      

Plant and machinery 1,222,262,867 869,170,480    353,092,387    

Accumulated Net

Cost depreciation book value

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Freehold land 51,545,829      -                  51,545,829      

Factory building 163,680,884    117,803,038    45,877,846      

Plant and machinery 1,227,868,563 857,868,563    370,000,000    

19.2 Capital work in progress

As at As at

July 01, 2018 Additions Transfers June 30, 2019

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Building -                       -                  -                  -                  

-                       -                  -                  -                  

As at As at

July 01, 2017 Additions Transfers June 30, 2018

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Building 6,502,471            1,181,524        (7,683,995)      -                  

6,502,471            1,181,524        (7,683,995)      -                  

19.3

19.4 Forced sales value as per the last revaluation report as of June 30, 2018 

Asset class Forced sale value

Freehold land 286,042,000    

Building on freehold land 302,168,625    

Plant and machinery 314,500,000    

902,710,625    

2019

2019

2018

Most recent valuation of land, building and plant and machinery of the Company w as carried out by an independent valuer

Messrs Spell Vision as on June 30, 2018. For basis of valuation and other fair value measurement disclosures refer to note 46.

Had there been no revaluation, the cost, accumulated depreciation and net book values of revalued items w ould have been as 

2018

This freehold land and building of 358 Kanals is located at 21 KM, Sheikhupura Road, Ferozw attw an, Off 3.5 KM Warburton

Road, Hadbast Mauza, Kot Shah Muhammad, Tehsil Nankana, District, Sheikhupura.
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20 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018

Rupees Rupees

-  LESCO       11,343,203       11,343,203 

- SNGPL       14,743,324       14,428,135 

- Others         2,094,247         2,094,247 

28,180,774      27,865,585      

21 DEFERRED TAXATION (Restated)

Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences 21.2 206,359,544    218,003,170    

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences 21.2 (171,404,226)  (179,588,894)  

Net asset/(liability) 34,955,318      38,414,277      

Less: Deferred income tax asset not recognised (34,955,318)    (38,414,277)    

-                  -                  

21.1

21.2 Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the follow ing:

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018

Rupees Rupees

(Restated)

Deferred tax assets

Employees retirement benefits (753,928)         (1,004,138)      

Provisions (24,106,919)    (14,852,603)    

Unused tax losses and credits (181,498,697)  (202,146,429)  

(206,359,544)  (218,003,170)  

Deferred tax liabilities

Operating f ixed assets - ow ned 82,707,048      84,862,381      

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 88,697,178      94,726,512      

171,404,226    179,588,894    

(34,955,318)    (38,414,277)    

21.3

Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

22 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 2,847,725        3,488,712        

Spares - in hand 47,360,832      52,053,591      

Spares - in transit 798,222           -                  

48,159,054      52,053,591      

Loose tools 177,044           188,269           

Provision for slow  moving stores, spares and loose tools 22.1 (37,404,941)    -                  

13,778,882      55,730,572      

The net deferred income tax asset of Rs. 34.955 million (2018: Rs. 38.414 million) has not been recognised in these financial

statements as the temporary differences are not expected to reverse in foreseeable future because taxable profits may not be

available against w hich the temporary differences can be utilised.

Security deposits

Revenue from export sales of the Company is subject to taxation under the final tax regime, w hile the remaining portion of

revenue attracts assessment under normal provisions of the Ordinance. Deferred tax is provided for only that portion of timing

differences that represent income taxable under normal provisions of the Ordinance. These differences are calculated at that

proportion of total timing differences that the local sales, other than the indirect exports taxable under section 154 (3) of the

Ordinance, bear to the total sales revenue based on historical and future trends. Deferred tax has been calculated at 29%

(2018: 29%) of the timing differences so determined based on tax rates notif ied by the Government of Pakistan for future tax

years.
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22.1 Provision for slow moving stores, spares and Loose tools

Balance at the beginning of the year -                  -                  

Provision made during the year - net 37,404,941      -                  

Balance at the end of the year 37,404,941      -                  

22.2 There are no stores, spares and loose tools held exclusively for capitalization.

23 STOCK IN TRADE

Raw  material 4,414,529        12,774,519      

Work in process 531,244           5,551,682        

Finished goods 23.1 10,533,863      42,421,296      

15,479,636      60,747,497      

23.1

23.2

Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

24 TRADE DEBTS - UNSECURED

Local

considered good 76,378,150      18,756,676      

considered doubtful 24.1 52,495,668      51,081,161      

128,873,818    69,837,837      

Foreign

considered good -                  -                  

considered doubtful 3,921,894        3,921,894        

3,921,894        3,921,894        

132,795,712    73,759,731      

Loss allow ance for ECL on trade debts 24.2 (56,417,562)    (55,003,055)    

76,378,150      18,756,676      

24.1 It includes Rs. Nil (2018: Rs. 48,629) due from A-Square (Private) Limited, a related party, no movement during the year.

Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

Age analysis of amounts due from related party is as follow s:

Not yet due -                  -                  

Past due by less than one year -                  -                  

Past due by more than one year -                  48,629             

-                  
-                  48,629             

24.2 Loss allowance for ECL on trade debts

As at beginning of the year 55,003,055      51,081,661      

Recovered during the year -                  (500)                

Written off during the year (62,608)           -                  

Recognized during the year 37 1,477,115        3,921,894        

As at end of the year 56,417,562      55,003,055      

Details of stock pledged as security are referred to in note 47 to the f inancial statements.

Stock of f inished goods includes stock of w aste valued at net realizable values of Rs. Nil (2018: Rs. 354,095) .
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Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

25 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Advances to suppliers - unsecured 25.1 9,224,358        9,243,256        

Advances to employees - unsecured, considered good 25.2 83,729             476,765           

9,308,087        9,720,021        

25.1 Advances to suppliers - unsecured

considered good 9,224,358        9,243,256        

considered doubtful -                  2,653,000        

9,224,358        11,896,256      

Impairment allow ance 25.1.2 -                  (2,653,000)      

9,224,358        9,243,256        

25.1.1 This represents advances to suppliers in the normal course of business and does not carry any interest or markup.

25.1.2 Movement in accumulated impairment

As at beginning of the year 2,653,000        2,653,000        

Recognized during the year -                  -                  

Write off during the year (2,653,000)      -                  

As at end of the year -                  2,653,000        

25.2

26 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS 

Security deposits 3,500,000        3,500,000        

3,500,000        3,500,000        

27 OTHER RECEIVABLES

considered good 5,851,796        2,814,094        

considered doubtful 1,507,300        -                  

7,359,096        2,814,094        

Loss allow ance for ECL on other receivables 27.1 (1,507,300)      -                  

5,851,796        2,814,094        

27.1 Movement in Loss allowance for ECL on other receivables 

As at beginning of the year -                  -                  

Recognized during the year 1,507,300        -                  

Write off during the year -                  -                  

As at end of the year 1,507,300        -                  

28 Tax refunds due from Government

Advance Income tax 9,430,499        10,807,991      

Sales tax reundable 2,236,215        2,294,829        

Special excise duty 551,522           551,522           

12,218,236      13,654,342      

29 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

These represent advances to employees for purchases and expenses on behalf of the Company and those against future

salaries and post employment benefits in accordance w ith the Company policy. These advances do not carry any interest or

markup.

This represents investment in listed equity securities held for trading classif ied as "financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss". Particulars of investments are as follow s:
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Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

MCB Bank Limited

357 (2018: 357) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Cost 75,500             75,500             

Changes in fair value (13,221)           (4,989)             

62,279             70,511             

Note 2019 2018

30 CASH AND BANK BALANCES Rupees Rupees

Cash in hand 180                  10,000             

Cash at banks

current accounts 24,078,304      2,459,139        

deposit/saving accounts 36,251             35,549             

24,114,555      2,494,688        

24,114,735      2,504,688        

30.1 Effective markup rate in respect of deposit/saving accounts, for the year, ranges from 4.50% to 9.92% (2018: 3.70% to 4.75%).

31 TURNOVER - NET

Note

Local Export Total

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Yarn 292,280,524    42,152,044      334,432,568    

Waste 2,911,710        -                  2,911,710        

Fabric 89,289,081      -                  89,289,081      

Raw  material 5,256,229        -                  5,256,229        

389,737,544    42,152,044      431,889,588    

Sales tax (883,931)         -                  (883,931)         

388,853,613    42,152,044      431,005,657    

Local Export Total

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Yarn 486,152,125    53,161,649      539,313,774    

Waste 6,213,111        -                  6,213,111        

Processing services 1,400,155        -                  1,400,155        

493,765,391    53,161,649      546,927,040    

Sales tax -                  -                  -                  

493,765,391    53,161,649      546,927,040    

2019

2018
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Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

32 COST OF SALES

Raw  material consumed 32.1 125,853,463    356,889,990    

Cost of fabric sold 82,107,290      -                  

Cost of raw  material sold 4,560,451        -                  

Stores, spares and loose tools consumed 4,513,156        14,880,019      

Salaries, w ages and benefits 32.2 20,540,543      66,567,437      

Fuel and pow er and w ater 21,426,397      72,473,860      

Repair and maintenance 828,048           2,177,244        

Travelling and conveyance 228,005           766,702           

Depreciation 19.1.2 24,128,236      49,089,921      

Others 486,281           1,208,464        

Manufacturing cost 284,671,870    564,053,637    

Work in process

As at beginning of the year 5,551,682        101,500           

As at end of the year (531,244)         (5,551,682)      

5,020,438        (5,450,182)      

Cost of goods manufactured 289,692,308    558,603,455    

2019 2018

Finished goods Rupees Rupees

As at beginning of the year 42,421,296      42,654,512      

Purchased during the year 91,776,448      37,433,070      

As at end of the year (10,533,863)    (42,421,296)    

123,663,881    37,666,286      

413,356,190    596,269,741    

Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

32.1 Raw material consumed

As at beginning of the year 12,774,519      9,859,184        

Purchased during the year 122,053,924    359,805,325    

Sold during the year (4,560,451)      -                  

As at end of the year (4,414,529)      (12,774,519)    

125,853,463    356,889,990    

32.2 These include charge in respect of employees retirement benefits amounting to Rs.453,934 (2018: Rs. 947,238).

Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

33 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Local

Freight and handling 866,806           2,005,013        

Commission 37,760             62,203             

Quality Claim 62,400             -                  

966,966           2,067,216        

Export

Ocean freight 71,576             94,125             

Commission on export 1,516,051        1,699,582        

Export development surcharge ` 106,470           122,437           

Export trailer charges 228,000           436,000           

Export bank charges 142,139           111,297           

Others 163,947           567,612           

2,228,183        3,031,053        

3,195,149        5,098,269        
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34 ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 34.1 9,148,277        9,176,898        

Travelling and conveyance 1,361,469        2,201,630        

Legal and professional 2,937,600        2,687,556        

Fee and subscription 278,620           589,987           

Rent, rates and taxes 400,000           140,512           

Electricity, gas and w ater 1,612,321        1,499,105        

Insurance 99,000             -                  

Repair and maintenance 625,569           258,030           

Communication 581,783           379,451           

Printing and stationery 41,955             95,639             

Vehicle running and maintenance 513,456           684,607           

Advertisement 108,700           30,000             

Entertainment 229,181           437,831           

Auditor's remuneration  34.2 300,000           900,000           

Depreciation 1,935,366        1,421,569        

Ijarah lease rentals -                  390,003           

Miscellaneous expenses 429,219           549,194           

20,602,516      21,442,012      

34.1 These include charge in respect of employees retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 821,862 (2018: Rs. 657,472).

Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

34.2 Auditor's remuneration

Annual statutory audit 250,000           750,000           

Half yearly review 50,000             50,000             

Certif ication fees -                  50,000             

Out of pocket expenses -                  50,000             

300,000           900,000           

35 OTHER INCOME

Gain on financial instruments

Foreign exchange gain 411,024           807,864           

Return on bank deposits 128,191           121,605           

Profit on suigas security deposit 315,189           -                  

Changes in fair value of investments at fair value through profit or loss (8,232)             (15,489)           

Dividend income 7,140               2,856               

853,312           916,836           

Other income

Sale of scrap 783,745           649,062           

Gain on disposal of operating f ixed assets 19.1.1 7,065,585        -                  

Old liabilities w ritten back 56,830,174      -                  

Other Income -                  10,424,333      

64,679,504      11,073,395      

65,532,816      11,990,231      

36 FINANCE COST

Interest on w orkers' profit participation fund 12.1 178,143           145,903           

Bank charges 99,045             397,435           

277,188           543,338           
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37 OTHER EXPENSES

Workers' Welfare Fund 12.2 -                  45,237             

Workers Profit Participation fund 944,811           -                  

Loss allow ance for ECL on trade debts 24.2 1,477,115        3,921,894        

Loss allow ance for ECL on other receivables 27.1 1,507,300        -                  

Loss on disposal of operating f ixed assets 19.1.1 -                  227,953           

Impairment Loss on Plant & Machinery -                  32,649,784      

Impairment allow ance for obsolete stores, spares & loose tools 37,404,941      -                  

Commission on sale of f ixed assets -                  406,000           

41,334,167      37,250,868      

38 TAXATION

Current taxation

current year 38.1 5,282,190        6,561,741        

prior year 428                  978,781           

Deferred Tax

current year (150,924)         32,686,122      

prior year -                  5,117,944        

5,131,694        45,344,588      

38.1

38.2

38.3

Unit 2019 2018

39 PROFIT/ (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit/ (Loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders Rupees 12,641,569      (147,031,545)  

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year No. of shares 17,636,719      17,636,719      

Profit/ (Loss) per share - Basic Rupees 0.72                 (8.34)               

There is no anti-dilutive effect on the basic profit/ loss per share of the Company.

2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit/ (Loss) before taxation 17,773,263      (101,686,957)  

Adjustments for non-cash and other items

Loss / (Gain) on disposal of operating f ixed assets (7,065,585)      227,955           

Provision for employees retirement benefits 1,275,796        1,514,690        

Old liabilities w ritten back (56,830,174)    -                  

Impairment allow ance for doubtful debts 1,477,115        -                  

Impairment allow ance for other recievables 1,507,300        -                  

Impairment loss on Plant and machinery -                  32,649,784      

Impairment allow ance for stores, spares and loose tools 37,404,941      -                  

Changes in fair value investments at fair value through profit or loss 8,232               15,489             

Finance Cost 277,188           543,338           

Depreciation on PPE 26,063,603      -                  

Depreciation on Investment property -                  50,511,490      

4,118,416        85,462,746      

Operating profit/ (loss) before changes in working capital 21,891,679      (16,224,211)    

Assessments for the tax years up to 2018 are deemed assessments in terms of Section 120 (1) of the Ordinance, as per

returns f illed by the Company.

The Government of Pakistan vide Finance Act 2018 notif ied a reduced tax rate of 29% for tax year 2019 as compared to 30%

applicable to previous year for Companies.

Provision for taxation has been made under section 113, 154 and 169 (2018: section 113, 154 and section 169) of the Income

Tax Ordinance, 2001 ("the Ordinance"), there is no relationship betw een aggregate tax expense and accounting profit.

Accordingly no numerical reconciliation has been presented.
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Changes in working capital

Stores, spares and loose tools 4,546,749        2,080,743        

Stock in trade 45,267,861      (8,132,301)      

Trade debts (59,098,589)    2,087,681        

Advances, prepayments and other receivables (4,133,068)      37,275,150      

Trade and other payables (54,777,617)    (14,663,830)    

(68,194,664)    18,647,443      

Cash (used in)/ generated from operations (46,302,986)    2,423,232        

41 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 30 24,114,735      2,504,688        

24,114,735      2,504,688        

42 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

42.1 Transactions with related parties

Nature of relationship Nature of transactions

Key management personnel Short term borrow ings obtained

(Mr. Shahid Mazhar, 65 .27 % Shareholding, Director) 67,645,000      22,420,000      

Short term borrow ings repaid

(Mr. Shahid Mazhar, 65 .27 % Shareholding, Director) 33,590,000      33,953,693      

(Mrs. Ghazala Shahid, 2.28% Shareholding, Director) 1,690,000        -                  

Balances with related parties

Nature of relationship Nature of balances

Key management personnel Short term borrow ings

(Mr. Shahid Mazhar, 65 .27 % Shareholding, Director) 150,989,374    116,934,374    

(Mrs. Ghazala Shahid, 2.28% Shareholding, Director) 1,000,000        2,690,000        

(Mr. Ahmed Bin Shahid, 8.50% Shareholding, Director) 7,850,000        7,850,000        

Short term employee benefits payable

(Mr. Shahid Mazhar, 65 .27 % Shareholding, Director) -                  6,000,000        

(Mrs. Ghazala Shahid, 2.28% Shareholding, Director) -                  4,800,000        

(Mr. Ahmed Bin Shahid, 8.50% Shareholding, Director) -                  2,040,000        

Associated undertaking Trade debts

(A Square (Pvt) Ltd) (Common Director) -                  48,629             

43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Company's f inancial instruments by class and category are as follow s:

Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

Financial assets

Cash in hand 30 180                  10,000             

Financial assets at amortized cost

Long term deposits 20 28,180,774      27,865,585      

Trade debts 24 76,378,150      18,756,676      

Security deposits 26 3,500,000        3,500,000        

Cash at bank 30 24,114,555      2,494,688        

132,173,479    52,616,949      

Related parties from the Company's perspective comprise associated companies and undertakings and key management

personnel. Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and

controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, and includes the Chief Executive and Directors of the Company.

Details of transactions and balances w ith related parties is as follow s:
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Short term investments 29 62,279             70,511             

132,235,938    52,697,460      

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Long term finances 10 105,968,864    105,968,864    

Long term payables 11.1 18,316,926      18,316,926      

Short term borrow ings 14 341,546,148    435,717,148    

Accrued interest/markup 13 103,514,885    103,514,885    

Trade creditors 12 58,791,679      126,035,014    

Ijarah rentals payables 16 28,544,690      28,544,690      

Accrued liabilities 12 50,409,593      86,059,017      

707,092,785    904,156,544    

44 FINANCIAL RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT

44.1 Credit risk

44.1.1 Maximum exposure to credit risk

Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

Long term deposits 20       28,180,774       27,865,585 

Trade debts 24       76,378,150       18,756,676 

Security deposits 26         3,500,000         3,500,000 

Bank balances 30       24,114,555         2,494,688 

132,173,479    52,616,949      

44.1.2 Concentration of credit risk

2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

Customers       76,378,150       18,756,676 

Banking companies and f inancial institutions       27,614,555         5,994,688 

Utility companies and regulatory authorities       28,180,774       27,865,585 

    132,173,479       52,616,949 

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of f inancial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. These risks affect

revenues, expenses and assets and liabilities of the Company.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of risk management framew ork. The Board

of Directors has developed a risk policy that sets out fundamentals of risk management framew ork. The risk policy focuses on

unpredictability of f inancial markets, the Company’s exposure to risk of adverse effects thereof and objectives, policies and

processes for measuring and managing such risks. The management team of the Company is responsible for administering and

monitoring the financial and operational f inancial risk management throughout the Company in accordance w ith the risk

management framew ork.

Credit risk is the risk of f inancial loss to the Company, if  the counterparty to a f inancial instrument fails to meet its obligations.

The Company’s exposure to financial risks, the w ay these risks affect the financial position and performance, and forecast

transactions of the Company and the manner in w hich such risks are managed is as follow s:

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date is as follow s:

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk, as at the reporting date, by type of counterparty is as follow s:
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44.1.3 Credit quality and impairment

(a) Counterparties with external credit ratings

(b) Counterparties without external credit ratings

Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated

carrying amount Impairment carrying amount Impairment

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Neither past due nor impaired -                       -                  

Past due by 0 to 30 days 41,927,925          629,759           

Past due by 31 to 90 days 15,150,533          130,362           

Past due by 90 days to one year 2,837,823            587,354           

Over one year 16,461,869          56,417,562      72,412,755      55,003,055      

76,378,150          56,417,562      73,760,230      55,003,055      

44.1.4 Collateral held

44.1.5 Credit risk management

44.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company w ill not be able to meet its f inancial obligations as they fall due.

44.2.1 Exposure to liquidity risk

The follow ing is the analysis of contractual maturities of f inancial liabilities, including estimated interest payments.

Carrying Contractual One year One to More than

amount cash flows or less five years five years

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Long term finances 105,968,864  105,968,864        105,968,864    -                  -                  

Short term borrow ings 341,546,148  341,546,148        341,546,148    -                  -                  

Accrued interest/markup 103,514,885  103,514,885        103,514,885    -                  -                  

Trade creditors 58,791,679    58,791,679          58,791,679      -                  -                  

Ijarah rentals payable 28,544,690    28,544,690          28,544,690      

Accrued liabilities 50,409,593    50,409,593          50,409,593      -                  -                  

688,775,859  688,775,859        688,775,859    -                  -                  

Carrying Contractual One year One to More than

amount cash f low s or less five years five years

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Long term finances 105,968,864  105,968,864        105,968,864    -                  -                  

Short term borrow ings 435,717,148  435,717,148        435,717,148    -                  -                  

Accrued interest/markup 103,514,885  103,514,885        103,514,885    -                  -                  

Trade creditors 126,035,014  126,035,014        126,035,014    -                  -                  

Ijarah rentals payable 28,544,690    28,544,690          28,544,690      

Accrued liabilities 86,059,017    86,059,017          86,059,017      -                  -                  

885,839,618  885,839,618        885,839,618    -                  -                  

As mentioned in note 44.1.3 to the financial statements, the Company's financial assets do not carry signif icant credit risk, w ith

the exception of trade debts, w hich are exposed to losses arising from any non-performance by customers. In respect of trade

debts, the Company manages credit risk by limiting signif icant exposure to any single customer. Formal policies and procedures

of credit management and administration of receivables are established and executed. In monitoring customer credit risk, the

ageing profile of total receivables and individually signif icant balances, along w ith collection activities are review ed on a regular

basis. High risk customers are identif ied and restrictions are placed on future trading, including suspending future shipments

and administering dispatches on a prepayment basis or confirmed letters of credit.

These include customers w hich are counter parties to 'trade debts' and utility companies and regulatory authorities w hich

are counter parties to 'long term deposits'. Credit risk in respect of 'long term deposits' is considered to be insignif icant as

non-performance by these parties is not expected. The Company is exposed to credit risk in respect of trade debts. The

analysis of ages of trade debts as at the reporting date is as follow s:

These include banking companies and financial institutions, w hich are counterparties to 'insurance claims receivable',

'security deposits' and 'cash at bank'. These counterparties have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various

credit rating agencies. Due to long standing business relationships w ith these counterparties and considering their strong

financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the

Company.

The Company does not hold any collateral to secure its f inancial assets.

2019 2018

Credit quality of f inancial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, w here available, or to historical information

about counterparty default rates. All counterparties, w ith the exception of customers, have external credit ratings determined by 

various credit rating agencies. Credit quality of customers is assessed by reference to historical defaults rates and present

ages.

2019

2018
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44.2.2 Overdue financial liabilities

Note 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

Long term finances 10 105,968,864    105,968,864    

Ijarah rentals payable 16 28,544,690      28,544,690      

Short term borrow ings 14 301,706,774    308,242,774    

Accrued interest/mark-up 13 103,514,885    103,514,885    

    539,735,213     546,271,213 

 The Company is contesting recovery suits f iled by the lenders. Refer to note 18.1 for details.

44.2.3 Liquidity risk management

44.3 Market risk

44.3.1 Currency risk

(a) Exposure to currency risk

USD Total

Rupees Rupees

Financial assets

Trade debts 5,295,929        5,295,929        

Financial liabilities -                  -                  

Net exposure 5,295,929        5,295,929        

USD Total

Rupees Rupees

Financial assets

Trade debts 3,921,894        3,921,894        

Financial liabilities -                  -                  

Net exposure 3,921,894        3,921,894        

(b) Exchange rates applied as at the reporting date

The Company's exposure to currency risk as at the reporting date is as follow s:

2019

Due to reasons explained in note 2.2, the Company defulted in repayments of its debts finances and interest/markup thereon

amounting to Rs. 539.74 million. (see note 44.2.2). 

As at the reporting date, the follow ing debt f inances and accrued interest/markup thereon are overdue.

The Company's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it w ill alw ays have suff icient liquidity to

meet its liabilities w hen due, under both normal and stressed conditions, w ithout incurring unacceptable losses or risking

damage to the Company's reputation. The Company monitors cash flow requirements and produces cash flow projections for

the short and long term. Typically, the Company ensures that it has suff icient cash on demand to meet expected operational

cash flow s, including servicing of f inancial obligations. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors and

creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customer. The

Company also has continued financial support from its directors in the form of interest free loans for any short term or long term

liquidity requirements.

2018

The follow ing spot exchange rates w ere applied as at the reporting date.

Currency risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flow s of a financial instrument w ill f luctuate because of changes in

foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises from transactions and resulting balances that are denominated in a currency other

than functional currency. 
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Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

USD 164.00                 164.50             121.45             121.63             

(c) Sensitivity analysis

(d) Currency risk management

44.3.2 Interest rate risk

(a) Interest/markup bearing financial instruments

2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets 36,251             35,549             

Financial liabilities 17,863,256      17,863,256      

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets -                  -                  

Financial liabilities 418,357,072    424,893,072    

(b) Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

(c) Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments and cash flow hedges

(d) Interest rate risk management

44.3.3 Price risk

The Company manages its exposure to currency risk through continuous monitoring of expected/forecast committed and

non-committed foreign currency payments and receipts. Reports on forecast foreign currency transactions, receipts and

payments are prepared on monthly basis, exposure to currency risk is measured and appropriate steps are taken to ensure

that such exposure is minimized w hile optimizing return. This includes matching of foreign currency liabilities/payments to

assets/receipts and using source inputs in foreign currency.

A ten percent appreciation in prices of equity securities as at reporting date w ould have increased profit for the year by Rs.

6,228 (2018: Rs. 7,051). A ten percent diminution in prices of equity securities as at the reporting date w ould have had equal but 

opposite effect on profit. The analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant and ignores the impact, if any, on

provision for taxation for the year.

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flow s of financial instrument w ill f luctuate because of changes in

market prices, other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk, w hether those changes are caused by factors

specif ic to the individual f inancial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar f inancial instruments. The Company is

exposed to price risk in respect of its investment in listed equity securities.

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flow s of a financial instrument w ill f luctuate because of changes in

interest rates.

A ten percent appreciation in Pak Rupee against foreign currencies w ould have decreased profit for the year by Rs. 0.529 

million (2018: Rs. 0.392 million). A ten percent depreciation in Pak Rupee w ould have had an equal but opposite effect on

profit for the year. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores the 

impact, if  any, on provision for taxation for the year.

2019 2018

The Company manages interest rate risk by analyzing its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Cash flow interest rate

risk is managed by simulating various scenarios taking into consideration refinancing, renew al of existing positions and

alternative financing. Based on these scenarios, the Company calculates impact on profit after taxation and equity of

defined interest rate shift, mostly 100 basis points.

An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates as at the reporting date w ould have decreased profit for the year by Rs.

4.18 million (2018: Rs. 4.25 million). A decrease of 100 basis points w ound have had an equal but opposite effect on profit

for the year. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, remain constant and

ignores the impact, if  any, on provision for taxation for the year.

The Company does not account for f ixed rate f inancial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The effective interest/markup rates for interest/markup bearing financial instruments are mentioned in relevant notes to the

financial statements. The Company's interest/markup bearing f inancial instruments as at the reporting date are as follow s:
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45 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Unit 2019 2018

Total debt Rupees 105,968,864    105,968,864    

Total equity Rupees 500,536,637    367,525,563    

606,505,501    473,494,427    

Gearing % age 17.47% 22.38%

46 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

46.1 Financial Instruments

46.1.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

a) Recurring fair value measurements

Nature of asset Hierarchy 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Short term investments Level 1              62,279              70,511 

b) Non-recurring fair value measurements

46.1.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The fair value hierarchy of assets measured at fair value and the information about how the fair values of these financial

instruments are determined are as follow s:

The Company measures some of its assets at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value measurements are

classif ied using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the signif icance of the inputs used in making the measurements and has the

follow ing levels.

There w ere no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year. The Company is not subject to

externally imposed capital requirements, except those, related to maintenance of debt covenants, commonly imposed by the

providers of debt f inances, including the impact, if  any, of recovery suits f iled by them against the Company. See note 18.

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to

sustain future development of the business. These are subject to operational conditions both internal and external, and

generation of cash flow s for w orking capital requirements and meeting of debt obligations. Any temporary shortfall is met

through interest free loans from directors. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital and level of dividends to

ordinary shareholders and seeks to keep a balance betw een the higher return that might be possible w ith higher level of

borrow ings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The Company monitors capital using the

gearing ratio w hich is debt divided by total capital employed. Debt comprises long term finances and liabilities against assets

subject to finances lease, including current maturity. Total capital employed includes total equity, as show n in the balance sheet

plus surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment, plus debt. The Company's strategy is to maintain an optimal capital

structure in order to minimize cost of capital. Gearing ratio of the Company as at the reporting date is as follow s:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Inputs other than quoted prices included w ithin Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

Valuation techniques/Key inputs

Quoted prices in an active market

The management considers the carrying amount of all f inancial instruments not measured at fair value to approximate their

carrying values.

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.
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46.2 Assets and liabilities other than financial instruments.

46.2.1 Recurring fair value measurements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

Freehold land                     -   309,025,000        -                  309,025,000    336,520,000    

Factory building                     -   389,018,153        -                  389,018,153    413,594,996    

Plant and machinery                     -   353,092,387        -                  353,092,387    370,000,000    

Freehold land:

Building:

Plant and machinery:

46.2.2 Non-recurring fair value measurements

2019 2018

Rupees Rupees

47 RESTRICTION ON TITLE, AND ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY 

Mortgages and charges

Charge over current assets 209,000,000    209,000,000    

Charge over f ixed assets 321,000,000    321,000,000    

Pledge

Raw  material 2,972,627        8,717,336        

Finished goods 10,533,863      42,654,512      

48 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Chief Executive Directors Executives

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Managerial remuneration -                  2,090,400        -                  

Allow ances and perquisites -                  1,029,600        -                  

Post employment benefits -                  -                  -                  

-                  3,120,000        -                  

Number of persons 1                      2                      -                  

Revalued amount of building has been determined by reference to present depreciated replacement values after taking into

consideration covered area and type of construction, age of civil and ancillary structures, physical condition and level of

preventive maintenance carried out by the Company.

Valuation is based on inquiries from the local manufactureres / suppliers of the similar machinery that w as compared to the

prices of machinery and equipment installed in other comparable companies and the information provided by the client. The

invoice value w as enhanced to about 20% to cater for the duty structure and overheads like insurance, clearing and freight

costs and installation etc to come to the landed cost, w hich w as compared w ith the prices of equivalent and similar machinery. 

For recurring fair value measurements, the fair value hierarchy and information about how the fair values are determined is as

follow s:

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.

The aggregate amount charged to profit or loss in respect of chief executive, directors and executives on account of

managerial remuneration, allow ances and perquisites, post employment benefits and the number of such directors and

executives is as follow s:

2019

The fair valuation of the revalued assets are considered to represent a level 2 valuation of fair value hierarchy based on

signif icant observable inputs. The fair values are subject to change ow ing to change in input. How ever, the management does

not expect there to be a material sensitivity to the fair values arising from the observable inputs. The basis of revaluation for

items of these f ixed assets w ere as follow s:

Revalued amount of freehold land has been determined by reference to local market values of land taking into account prevailing

fair market prices under the position and circumstances present on the date of revaluation and current market scenario for

properties of similar nature in the immediate neighborhood and adjoining areas.
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Chief Executive Directors Executives

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Managerial remuneration -                  -                  6,660,362        

Allow ances and perquisites -                  -                  2,220,121        

Post employment benefits -                  -                  -                  

-                  -                  8,880,483        

Number of persons 1                      2                      6                      

49 SEGMENT INFORMATION

49.1 The Company is a single reportable segment.

49.2 All non-current assets of the Company are situated in Pakistan. 

49.3 All sales of the Company have originated from Pakistan. 

50 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

51 RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS AND IMPAIRMENT

52 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Unit 2019 2018

Owned

Total number of spindles installed No. 50,136             50,136             

Average number of spindles w orked No. 14,776             10,916             

Number of shifts w orked per day No. 1 to 3 1 to 3

Plant capacity on the basis of utilization converted into 20s count Kgs 14,924,234      14,924,234      

Actual production converted into 20s count Kgs 1,240,215        3,619,940        

53 EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

54 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements w ere authorized for issue on October 04, 2019 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Total number of employees of the Company as at the reporting date are 47 (2018: 379). Average number of persons employed

by the Company during the year are 123 (2018: 235).

As at the reporting date, subject to appropriateness of going concern assumption, recoverable amounts of all assets/cash

generating units are equal to or exceed their carrying amounts, unless stated otherw ise in these f inancial statements.

It is diff icult to precisely compare production capacity and the resultant production converted into base count in the textile

industry since it f luctuates w idely depending on various factors such as count of yarn spun, raw materials used, spindle speed

and tw ist etc. It w ould also vary according to pattern of production adopted in a particular year.

There is no event after the reporting period requiring any adjustment in or disclosure in f inancial statements.

The chief executive and directors are provided w ith cars maintained by the Company and telephone at their residence. The

other directors have w aived their meeting fees and remuneration. 

2018
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55 RECLASSIFICATION

The follow ing have been reclassif ied for better presentation.

Particulars From To 2018

(Rupees)

Loans and advances 9,720,021        

3,500,000        

2,814,094        

2,846,351        

56 GENERAL

56.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

56.2

Advances, deposits, 

prepayments and other 

receivables

Advances to 

employees and 

suppliers

Comparative figures have been rearranged and reclassif ied, w here necessary, for the purpose of comparison. How ever, there

w ere no signif icant reclassif ications during the year.

Sales tax 

refundable and 

special excise duty

Advances, deposits, 

prepayments and other 

receivables

Tax refunds due 

from government

Security deposits Advances, deposits, 

prepayments and other 

receivables

Trade deposits 

and short term 

prepayments

Rent, rebate and 

other receivables

Advances, deposits, 

prepayments and other 

receivables

Other receivables
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 
 

 

AS ON JUNE 30, 2019 

 

 

Number of 
ShareHolders 

Shareholdings Total Number of 
Share Held 

Percentage of 
Total Capital 

From To 

594 1  - 100 15,158 0.09 

227 101  - 500 51,722 0.29 

160 501  - 1000 114,515 0.65 

125 1001  - 5000 247,508 1.40 

9 5001  - 10000 53,001 0.30 

5 10001  - 15000 63,792 0.36 

2 15001  - 20000 31,750 0.18 

5 20001  - 25000 102,599 0.58 

1 25001  - 30000 29,121 0.17 

2 50001  - 55000 102,484 0.58 

1 70001  - 75000 74,016 0.42 

2 105001  - 110000 213,308 1.21 

1 400001  - 405000 401,566 2.28 

1 515001  - 520000 519,793 2.95 

1 1105001  - 1110000 1,105,528 6.27 

2 1495001  - 1500000 3,000,000 17.01 

1 11510001 - 11515000 11,510,858 65.27 

1,139   17,636,719 100.00 
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS 

AS ON JUNE 30, 2019     

Sr. 
# 

Name Shares Held Percentage 

Individuals  
Sub-Total: 2,194,832 12.4447 

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children 

1 NAUREEN REHAN 519,793 2.9472 

2 SHAHID MAZHAR 11,510,858 65.2664 

3 AHMED BIN SHAHID 1,500,000 8.5050 

4 MR. SHAHID MAHMUD 500 0.0028 

5 MR. NADEEM BHATTI 500 0.0028 

6 MUHAMMAD AKHTAR 939 0.0053 

7 GHAZALA SHAHID 401,566 2.2769 

8 MUHAMMAD AFNAN SHAHID (MINOR) THRO SHAHID MAZHAR (GUARDIAN) 1,500,000 8.5050  
Sub-Total: 15,434,156 87.5115 

NIT and ICP 

1 M/S. INVESTMENT CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN 479 0.0027 

2 M/S. NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN, TRUSTEE DEPARTMENT 2,500 0.0142  
Sub-Total: 2,979 0.0169     

Mudarabas and Mutual Funds Nil Nil     

Insurance Companies Nil Nil     

Banks, Development Financial Instituations, Non Banking Financial Instituations 

1 IDBL (ICP UNIT) 600 0.0034 

2 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN LTD. 2 0.0000  
Sub-Total: 602 0.0034 

Others 

1 MUHAMMAD AHMED NADEEM SECURITIES (SMC-PVT) LIMITED 27 0.0002 

2 CAPITAL VISION SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 1,361 0.0077 

3 FIKREES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 1,000 0.0057 

4 AWJ SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED. 386 0.0022 

5 MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED 1 0.0000 

6 NH SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED. 120 0.0007 

7 NH HOLDINGS (PVT) LTD 1,077 0.0061 

8 Y.S. SECURITIES & SERVICES (PVT) LTD. 78 0.0004 

9 M/S. COLOMBY TRADING LTD. 100 0.0006  
Sub-Total: 4,150 0.0235  

Grand Total: 17,636,719 100.0000     

    

Shareholders having 5% or more voting rights:  
MUHAMMAD AFNAN SHAHID (MINOR) THRO SHAHID MAZHAR (GUARDIAN) 1,500,000 8.5050  
SHAHID MAZHAR 11,510,858 65.2664  
AHMED BIN SHAHID 1,500,000 8.5050  
RAFIA SULTANA 1,105,528 6.2683  

Total: 15,616,386 88.5447     
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Folio No./CDC Participant ID 

And Account No. ___________________________ 

CNIC No. _________________________________ 

PROXY FORM 

I/We __________________________________________________________________________ Son / Daughter / Wife of 

_________________________________________________________ being member(s) of Shadman Cotton Mills Limited and holder of 

_____________________ Ordinary Shares as per Registered Folio No. /CDC Participant ID No.Account No. _______________ do 

hereby appoint Mr. __________________________________ of __________________________ or failing him/her 

______________________________________ of __________________________ who is also member of Shadman Cotton Mills Limited, 

vide registered folio no./CDC/ Participant ID No. and Account No. 

________________________________________________________________ as my / our proxy to vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at 

the 39th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, October 28, 2019 at 10.30 a.m. at 2-E, Block-G, 

Mushtaq Ahmed Gurmani Road, Gulberg-II, Lahore and at any adjournment thereof. 

As witness my/our hand this _____________________day of ________________________2019 

1. Witness: 

 

Signature 

Name 

Address: 

 

CNIC/Passport No. 

 

______________________________ 

______________________________ 

______________________________ 

______________________________ 

______________________________ 

 Please affix here 

Revenue Stamp of 

Rs.5/- 

 

_____________________ 

Members’ Signature 

    

Notes: 

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint another member as his / 

her proxy to attend and vote on his / her behalf. Proxies in order to be valid must be received at the Registered 

Office of the Company 48 hours before the time of the meeting. A proxy must be a member of the Company. 

2. Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to attend and vote at this meeting, must bring his / her original 

CNIC or Passport to prove his / her identity and in case of proxy must encloses an attested copy of his / her CNIC or 

Passport. Representative of corporate members should bring the usual documents required for such purposes. 

3. Signature should agree with specimen signature registered with the company.  
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